

May 2024 Survey

Toplines by income (2 levels), education

Sample of young adults aged 18-40 (n=2,089) May 10 to 22, 2024

Table of contents

GenForward Tracking Questions	4
Presidential approval	
Party affect	
Most important problem	(
Direction of the country	
Nation's economy	
Optimism about personal future	8
Worry about unexpected expense	
Worry about ability to pay rent or mortgage	
Worry about keeping or finding a good job	(
Greatest issue facing one's community	10
Past Elections	1
Voted in 2020 presidential election	1
Vote choice in 2020 presidential election	
Voted in 2022 midterm elections	1:
Election 2024	1;
Interest in election news	1
Likelihood of voting in election	
Vote choice in election	1.
Reason for not voting	
Most important election issue	
Political participation	1(
Frequency of voting	16
Non-voting participation	
Views on presidential candidates	2
Approval of Trump as president	2:
Concern about Biden's age	2:
Concern about Trump's age	
Candidate who most cares about needs of people like you	
Candidate who can manage government best	
Candidate who is most capable of being a strong leader	
Candidate who is most capable of being an effective leader	
Candidate who will do most to improve your and your family's life	2
Candidate who will best handle immigration	

Methodology	44
Issues: Student loan debt Approval of Biden's efforts to cancel student loan debt	
Issues: Abortion and reproductive justice Support for overturning of Roe View on abortion rights Perceived effect of abortion on vote choice Support for state control of abortion policy Belief on stage in pregnancy after which abortion should not be allowed	40 40 41
Impact of inflation on self or family	
Issues: Immigration Perception of situation at U.SMexico border	36
Perception of Republican Party ideology Issues: War in Gaza Approval of Biden's handling of war in Gaza Sympathy toward Israelis or Palestinians Blame for war or violence in Gaza Perception of U.S. support for Israel or Palestine Support for U.S. calling for permanent ceasefire Perceived effect of war in Gaza on vote choice Perferred outcome of Israeli-Palestinian conflict Support for student protestors Support for use of police to clear student encampments Perception of student protestors as spoiled and elite	30 30 30 31 32 33 33 34 34 35
Views on parties Perception of Democratic Party ideology	
Candidate who will most protect our democracy	27 27

GenForward Tracking Questions

Presidential approval

Response		Income (2 levels)		Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Approve strongly	6	6	5	6	7	4	5	
Approve somewhat	23	22	25	21	19	20	30	
Neither approve nor disapprove	20	22	18	23	22	17	20	
Disapprove somewhat	22	20	23	22	19	25	21	
Disapprove strongly	29	30	29	27	32	33	25	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Party affect

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Very favorable	7	7	6	3	14	5	3	
Somewhat favorable	21	22	19	21	24	24	16	
Somewhat unfavorable	26	26	26	23	26	28	26	
Very unfavorable	38	33	43	32	25	35	53	
Don't know enough to say	7	10	4	19	9	8	2	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	2	2	0	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

For both parties, please select if	you have a fav	orable or unfa	vorable	impression of th	nat party. [The Demo	ocratic Party]		
Response		Income (2 I	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Very favorable	9	11	6	11	12	7	7	
Somewhat favorable	29	27	32	20	22	28	38	
Somewhat unfavorable	27	25	30	25	28	27	27	
Very unfavorable	27	26	28	23	27	29	26	
Don't know enough to say	7	10	4	19	9	8	2	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	0	2	1	0	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Most important problem

		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
National debt	6	6	6	6	8	4	5
Environment and climate change	4	4	5	5	1	4	7
Gay rights / LGBT issues	1	1	1	0	2	1	0
Gun control	4	4	4	7	6	3	3
Health care	5	5	4	0	3	6	5
Immigration	7	5	8	7	5	8	6
Poverty	7	8	5	7	8	9	3
Income inequality	12	11	14	14	8	12	16
Unemployment	3	4	2	3	4	3	1
Economic growth	14	12	16	10	14	14	14
Military strength	0	1	0	2	0	1	0
Morality and religion in society	2	2	2	2	0	3	3
Racism	3	3	3	0	2	3	4
Social Security	1	1	0	1	1	1	0
Taxes	3	3	3	3	4	2	3
Women's rights	3	3	4	2	3	2	5
Crime	4	4	3	5	4	4	3
Foreign policy	2	1	3	0	0	2	4
Education	2	2	2	2	2	2	3
Terrorism and homeland security	2	2	2	3	3	2	1
Police brutality	1	2	0	3	2	Ο	1
Sexual harassment	1	1	0	0	2	Ο	Ο
Free trade	Ο	0	0	0	0	Ο	Ο
Mass incarceration	0	1	0	1	0	0	0
Too many wars	4	5	3	2	6	3	4
Abortion	2	3	1	1	3	2	2
Student loan debt	2	2	2	1	3	1	1
The war in Ukraine	1	1	2	0	1	2	1
The war in Gaza	5	5	5	11	3	5	4
Skipped/Refused	1	1	0	2	1	0	1
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Direction of the country

Response		Income (2 levels)			Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Off on the wrong track	67	68	66	68	67	70	65		
Generally headed in the right direction	14	13	16	14	15	14	14		
Not sure	18	19	18	17	18	16	21		
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	1	0	0	0		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Nation's economy

How would you describe the n	ation's economy							
Response		Income (2 l	Income (2 levels) Education					
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Very good	2	2	2	1	3	1	2	
Somewhat good	13	8	19	9	9	12	18	
Neither good nor poor	26	28	25	37	27	22	27	
Somewhat poor	35	35	34	31	32	35	37	
Very poor	24	27	20	22	28	30	15	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Optimism about personal future

Response	Income (2 levels)			Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Very optimistic	12	11	13	11	13	11	12	
Somewhat optimistic	30	25	36	25	23	27	41	
Neither optimistic nor pessimistic	29	32	25	37	37	26	22	
Somewhat pessimistic	19	19	19	14	18	23	18	
Very pessimistic	10	12	7	11	9	12	7	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	3	0	1	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Worry about unexpected expense

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Extremely worried	26	36	15	44	32	32	11	
Very worried	14	15	13	15	14	19	10	
Somewhat worried	23	25	21	23	31	19	19	
A little worried	17	14	20	10	14	16	22	
Not at all worried	20	10	31	8	10	13	38	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Worry about ability to pay rent or mortgage

		Income (2 levels)		Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Extremely worried	10	16	5	18	13	15	3	
Very worried	9	11	6	11	8	11	6	
Somewhat worried	20	22	17	33	27	19	11	
A little worried	19	16	23	7	15	17	27	
Not at all worried	30	24	37	12	22	26	45	
I do not pay rent or a mortgageYOU DO NOT PAY RENT OR A MORTGAGE	12	11	12	19	14	12	7	
Skipped/Refused	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Worry about keeping or finding a good job

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Extremely worried	11	14	7	14	14	14	4	
Very worried	10	12	8	12	10	13	7	
Somewhat worried	28	29	26	50	26	24	27	
A little worried	25	21	29	11	23	23	31	
Not at all worried	26	22	30	11	26	25	31	
Skipped/Refused	1	0	1	1	1	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Greatest issue facing one's community

What is the greatest issue facing you	ur commun							
		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Gun violence	5	6	3	8	6	3	4	
Homelessness	10	10	10	10	10	9	10	
Poor public education	4	3	5	Ο	3	5	4	
High taxes	10	8	11	5	14	7	9	
Corrupt local governance	3	3	4	2	4	3	4	
Police brutality	1	Ο	1	Ο	1	1	Ο	
Environment and climate change	2	1	3	4	1	2	3	
LGBT rights	1	1	1	0	2	1	1	
Health care	4	3	4	0	3	5	4	
Immigration	3	2	3	0	3	3	2	
Poverty	10	11	8	9	11	10	8	
Income inequality	11	11	11	13	6	10	15	
Unemployment	4	5	3	5	5	5	3	
Economic growth	11	9	13	5	9	13	12	
Poor values	5	6	5	9	6	5	5	
Racism	2	2	2	1	1	2	2	
Women's rights/Gender equality	1	1	1	0	0	1	3	
Crime	7	7	7	12	7	7	6	
Sexual harassment	Ο	0	Ο	0	1	0	0	
Mass incarceration	1	1	1	5	1	0	0	
Food insecurity	2	3	2	3	2	4	1	
Access to mental health care	3	4	3	3	3	4	3	
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	4	1	0	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Past Elections

Voted in 2020 presidential election

In the 2020 presidential election between Donald Trump and Joe Biden, did things come up that kept you from voting, or did you happen to vote?

		Income (2 l	evels)		Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above			
Yes, voted	66	59	73	31	56	64	84			
Did not vote	23	30	16	37	32	25	11			
Was not eligible to vote in 2020	11	11	11	30	12	11	6			
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	1	0	0	0			
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900			

Vote choice in 2020 presidential election

		Income (2 l	evels)		Education			
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	60	58	62	63	49	54	71	
Donald Trump	30	33	28	29	46	35	19	
Someone else	9	7	10	7	4	11	10	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	0	1	0	0	1	
Unweighted N	1461	691	770	51	216	466	728	

Voted in 2022 midterm elections

In the 2022 midterm congressional	elections, d	id things come	up that	kept you from \	oting, or did you ha	appen to vote?	
	Income (2 levels)			Education			
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
Yes, voted	47	40	54	24	42	43	60
Did not vote	44	50	39	53	48	49	36
Was not eligible to vote in 2022	8	10	7	22	11	8	4
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	1	О	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Election 2024

Interest in election news

How much interest do you h	nave in following ne			ctions?			
Response		Income (2 levels)			Educat	ion	
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
A great deal	19	18	20	19	19	23	16
Quite a bit	19	18	21	17	18	16	24
Only some	33	33	31	36	30	30	36
Very little	17	17	17	12	18	17	17
No interest at all	12	13	10	16	15	14	7
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Likelihood of voting in election

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Definitely will not vote	5	7	4	7	9	4	3	
Probably will not vote	6	7	5	6	6	8	5	
Uncertain about whether Iyou will vote or not	15	20	10	23	22	13	9	
Probably will vote	16	17	16	25	14	19	14	
Definitely will vote	52	44	61	26	42	54	65	
I am not eligible to vote in this election	5	5	4	13	6	3	3	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Vote choice in election

Response		Income (2 l	Income (2 levels)		Education			
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Donald Trump	31	34	29	27	45	31	22	
Joe Biden	33	26	41	27	23	30	46	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr	11	12	9	12	11	14	8	
Cornel West	3	2	3	2	2	2	4	
Someone else	21	25	17	32	19	22	20	
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	0	2	2	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Reason for not voting

		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
The candidates do not represent my political beliefs and ideas	20	21	18	14	14	20	32
Both Biden and Trump are too old	8	7	10	Ο	3	9	17
I do not like any of the candidates	13	11	16	20	8	20	9
I do not think myyour vote matters	20	15	27	33	25	19	6
I am frustrated with the current political system	14	16	10	11	19	12	10
It is too difficult to vote	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
I am not registered to vote	9	11	7	5	17	1	10
I physically cannot get to the polls	1	1	0	0	0	3	Ο
I don't think voting changes anything	11	14	7	18	8	12	11
Some other reason	2	2	2	0	1	4	2
Skipped/Refused	2	2	3	0	5	0	1
Unweighted N	240	156	84	22	63	83	72

Most important election issue

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Threat to American democracy	9	7	11	5	7	7	13	
The environment and climate change	3	2	4	3	2	3	5	
Racism	1	1	1	0	1	1	2	
Income inequality	8	9	7	10	6	7	9	
Economic growth	11	9	13	6	11	10	14	
Student loan debt	3	2	3	3	2	3	3	
Immigration	7	6	7	6	7	8	5	
Inflation	18	18	19	19	20	24	13	
The war in Ukraine	1	1	1	1	2	2	Ο	
The war in Gaza	4	3	5	4	5	2	5	
Policing and public safety	1	1	1	2	1	0	Ο	
Abortion and reproductive rights	7	6	9	4	4	5	13	
Health care	4	4	4	3	4	5	3	
Poverty	6	9	2	11	6	8	3	
Unemployment	2	3	1	3	2	2	1	
Taxes	4	5	3	3	7	2	3	
Education	2	2	3	4	3	2	2	
Gun violence	3	3	3	1	7	2	2	
Crime	3	4	2	5	3	2	3	
LGBT issues	1	1	Ο	2	0	1	Ο	
The Supreme Court	1	1	1	0	0	1	1	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	3	1	1	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Political participation

Frequency of voting

How often would you say you vote?	How often would you say you vote?												
		Income (2 l	evels)	Education									
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above						
Always	22	20	23	11	21	19	27						
Nearly always	30	24	36	12	18	33	42						
Part of the time	20	19	21	16	22	21	19						
Seldom	12	15	8	12	17	12	6						
Never	9	12	5	22	14	7	3						
Never, because I have never before been eligible to vote	7	9	5	28	7	6	3						
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	0	1	2	0						
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900						

Non-voting participation

In the past year, please tell	us if you have done	any of the fol	lowing p	olitical activitie	s [Participated in	a protest]		
Response	Income (2 levels)				Education			
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	94	95	93	94	95	95	92	
Yes	6	5	7	6	5	5	8	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
No	94	96	91	92	96	95	91
Yes	6	4	9	8	4	5	9
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900
In the past year, please tell u	ıs if you have done	any of the fol	lowing p	olitical activities	s [Wore a campai	gn button]	
		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
No	95	96	94	89	96	95	96
Yes	5	4	6	11	4	5	4
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900
In the past year, please tell u	ıs if you have done	any of the fol	lowing p	olitical activitie	s [Expressed your	opinion]	
		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
No	60	67	54	68	70	58	53
Yes	40	33	46	32	30	42	47
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

- The past year, prease terr	as if you have done	Income (2 l		olitical activities [Raised or donated money online] Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	93	95	90	91	96	95	88	
Yes	7	5 10 9 4				5	12	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

In the past year, please tell (us if you have done	any of the fol	llowing p	olitical activitie	s [Raised or dona	ited money throug	gh offline methods]		
		Income (2 l	evels)		Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
No	98	98	97	96	98	98	98		
Yes	2	2	3	4	2	2	2		
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

In the past year, please tell us if you have done any of the following political activities... [Started or joined a political group on a social networking site]

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	96	96	97	97	97	95	96	
Yes	4	4	3	3	3	5	4	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

In the past year, please tell us if you have done any of the following political activities... [Started or joined a political group that is not primarily online]

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	98	98	99	99	97	99	99	
Yes	2	2	1	1	3	1	1	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

In the past year, please tell	In the past year, please tell us if you have done any of the following political activities [Signed a petition]											
	Income (2 levels) Education											
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above					
No	73	75	72	81	81	70	68					
Yes	27	25	28	19	19	30	32					
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900					

Response		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
No	88	92	83	93	94	89	80
Yes	12	8	17	7	6	11	20
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

In the past year, please tell us if you have done any of the following political activities... [Shared or circulated news or other information about recent political events on social media]

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	87	90	85	87	92	88	83	
Yes	13	10	15	13	8	12	17	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

In the past year, please tell us if you have done any of the following political activities... [Talked to friends and/or family about elections]

		Income (2 levels)			Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
No	55	62	48	68	63	54	47		
Yes	45	38	52	32	37	46	53		
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

In the past year, please tell us if you have done any of the following political activities... [Canvassed for a campaign or cause]

	Income (2 levels)			Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	99	99	99	97	99	99	98	
Yes	1	1	1	3	1	1	2	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

The past year, prease terr	as it you have done	Income (2 l	ducation	xt-banked for a campaign or cause tion			
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
No	99	99	98	98	100	98	99
Yes	1	1	2	2	0	2	1
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	88	90	85	84	89	88	88	
Yes	12	10 15		16	11	12	12	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

In the past year, please tell	us if you have done	any of the fol Income (2 l		olitical activities [Supported a nonprofit organization in my commu Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
No	88	89	86	82	92	91	82	
Yes	12	11	14	18	8	9	18	
Skipped/Refused	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Views on presidential candidates

Approval of Trump as president

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Approve strongly	13	17	10	15	20	14	7	
Approve somewhat	19	18	20	15	22	22	14	
Neither approve nor disapprove	16	20	11	25	22	14	10	
Disapprove somewhat	14	11	17	12	10	18	15	
Disapprove strongly	37	33	41	32	24	32	53	
Skipped/Refused	0	1	0	3	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Concern about Biden's age

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Very concerned	46	42	50	31	44	51	47	
Somewhat concerned	28	31	25	41	30	25	25	
A little concerned	17	16	17	16	16	12	21	
Not at all concerned	9	10	8	11	9	11	7	
Skipped/Refused	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Concern about Trump's age

Response	Income (2 levels)				Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Very concerned	26	24	29	19	19	28	33		
Somewhat concerned	24	23	25	26	18	22	30		
A little concerned	23	22	23	27	24	23	20		
Not at all concerned	26	30	21	26	38	25	16		
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	2	1	1	0		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Candidate who most cares about needs of people like you

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	26	21	31	24	22	19	35	
Donald Trump	24	27	22	21	37	24	15	
Cornel West	4	4	5	5	3	3	6	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	8	9	8	6	9	12	6	
Some other candidate	4	5	3	1	5	4	5	
None of them	32	33	32	41	24	37	33	
Skipped/Refused	1	2	0	2	1	1	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Candidate who can manage government best

	Income (2 levels)			Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	22	17	28	14	17	15	34	
Donald Trump	31	33	28	30	44	31	20	
Cornel West	2	2	2	4	2	3	2	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	9	9	8	7	10	10	7	
Some other candidate	6	7	5	3	6	7	6	
None of them	28	30	27	40	21	32	29	
Skipped/Refused	2	2	1	2	1	2	2	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Candidate who is most capable of being a strong leader

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	19	15	23	12	14	12	30	
Donald Trump	34	35	34	29	49	35	24	
Cornel West	3	3	3	3	2	3	4	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	9	11	7	12	10	12	6	
Some other candidate	6	6	5	3	5	6	8	
None of them	27	28	27	38	19	32	28	
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	2	1	1	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Candidate who is most capable of being an effective leader

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	21	16	26	15	18	14	30	
Donald Trump	29	30	27	22	42	29	19	
Cornel West	4	3	4	7	3	3	5	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	10	11	8	9	11	13	6	
Some other candidate	6	6	5	3	6	6	6	
None of them	30	31	29	41	19	34	32	
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	2	1	2	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Candidate who will do most to improve your and your family's life

Of the presidential candidates	listed below, wh	ich do you thi	nk[W	ill do the most t	o improve your life	and the life of y	our family?]		
		Income (2 l	evels)		Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Joe Biden	22	18	26	21	19	16	30		
Donald Trump	28	29	26	20	39	29	19		
Cornel West	5	5	5	6	6	3	5		
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	8	9	8	7	8	12	6		
Some other candidate	5	6	5	7	4	5	6		
None of them	30	31	30	35	23	34	32		
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	4	0	1	2		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Candidate who will best handle immigration

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	21	18	23	20	17	15	29	
Donald Trump	34	34	34	27	42	38	25	
Cornel West	4	5	4	5	6	3	4	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	6	8	5	5	8	8	4	
Some other candidate	5	5	4	7	3	4	6	
None of them	29	28	29	32	23	31	31	
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	4	1	1	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Candidate who will most protect our democracy

		Income (2 levels)		Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	26	19	33	20	19	20	38	
Donald Trump	28	30	26	19	41	28	19	
Cornel West	3	3	2	4	3	2	3	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	9	11	7	8	9	12	7	
Some other candidate	6	7	4	7	6	6	6	
None of them	27	27	26	38	22	30	25	
Skipped/Refused	2	2	1	4	1	1	2	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Candidate who will most protect woman's right to choose

Of the presidential candidates listed below, which do you think.... [Will do the most to protect a woman's right to choose to have an abortion?]

		Income (2 l	evels)		Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above			
Joe Biden	34	26	42	26	26	29	46			
Donald Trump	15	19	12	14	26	15	7			
Cornel West	4	4	4	6	3	4	4			
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	8	9	7	7	8	10	6			
Some other candidate	6	7	5	7	7	6	6			
None of them	31	33	29	35	28	35	29			
Skipped/Refused	2	3	1	4	1	1	2			
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900			

Candidate who will do most to bring down inflation

Of the presidential candidates	listed below, wh	ich do you thi	nk[W	ill do the most t	o bring down inflati	on?]			
		Income (2 l	evels)		Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Joe Biden	18	15	22	16	16	12	26		
Donald Trump	33	33	33	27	44	36	23		
Cornel West	3	4	3	2	3	3	3		
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	6	7	5	6	7	8	4		
Some other candidate	6	7	5	7	6	5	7		
None of them	32	32	32	37	23	35	36		
Skipped/Refused	2	2	1	4	2	1	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Candidate who will best handle war in Gaza

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Joe Biden	15	12	17	10	16	10	19	
Donald Trump	29	29	28	18	38	31	21	
Cornel West	4	4	4	5	3	3	5	
Robert F. Kennedy Jr.	6	7	5	10	6	7	3	
Some other candidate	6	6	6	8	6	5	7	
None of them	39	38	39	45	28	41	44	
Skipped/Refused	2	3	1	4	2	2	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Views on parties

Perception of Democratic Party ideology

Response		Income (2 l	Income (2 levels)		Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Too progressive	31	26	37	20	26	36	34		
About right	28	27	30	31	26	27	31		
Too conservative	17	16	17	13	13	16	22		
No opinion	23	30	15	36	33	22	12		
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	0	2	0	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Perception of Republican Party ideology

In general, do you think the	political views of tl	political views of the Republican Party are too progressive, too conservative, or about right?									
Response		Income (2 l	evels)		Education						
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above				
Too progressive	5	4	5	4	4	7	4				
About right	22	23	20	11	29	23	17				
Too conservative	49	40	59	40	32	49	66				
No opinion	22	30	14	42	31	21	11				
Skipped/Refused	2	2	2	3	4	1	2				
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900				

Issues: War in Gaza

Approval of Biden's handling of war in Gaza

Do you approve or disapprove of th	ne way Joe B	iden is handlir	ng the wa	ar in Gaza?				
		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Strongly approve	3	3	2	5	5	1	1	
Somewhat approve	8	8	9	5	9	7	10	
Neither approve nor disapprove	39	42	35	43	39	40	37	
Somewhat disapprove	22	17	27	21	17	23	24	
Strongly disapprove	28	29	26	25	28	29	27	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	0	0	2	0	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Sympathy toward Israelis or Palestinians

Response		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
Israelis	16	15	17	8	17	14	19
Palestinians	24	19	30	27	15	24	31
Both	25	25	25	22	24	29	23
Don't know	34	40	28	43	43	32	26
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	0	1	0	1
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Blame for war or violence in Gaza

		Income (2 l	.evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
The Israeli government	13	11	16	20	8	13	16	
Hamas	24	17	32	14	14	23	36	
The United States government	6	9	3	8	9	6	3	
The Iranian government	3	3	3	0	6	3	2	
All of the above	22	19	24	20	24	25	18	
Don't know	31	40	22	38	39	29	25	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	0	1	0	1	0	
Unweighted N	1075	559	516	68	194	355	458	

	Income (2 levels)				Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
The Israeli government	16	12	20	11	10	14	23		
Hamas	21	18	26	7	24	21	23		
The United States government	4	6	3	2	10	3	2		
The Iranian government	3	4	2	3	5	2	2		
All of the above	24	26	22	34	20	29	21		
Don't know	30	32	27	40	29	31	27		
Skipped/Refused	2	3	1	4	2	0	2		
Unweighted N	1014	522	492	56	173	343	442		

Perception of U.S. support for Israel or Palestine

Do you think the U.S. government is too supportive of [Israel/Palestine], not supportive enough of [Israel/Palestine], or is the U.S. support of [Israel/Palestine] about right? Condition: Israel

		Income (2 l	.evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Too supportive	33	24	43	27	25	34	40	
Not supportive enough	14	15	14	15	19	12	12	
About right	15	14	16	15	11	16	18	
Don't know	36	45	26	43	44	37	28	
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	0	1	0	1	
Unweighted N	1086	555	531	66	191	362	467	

Do you think the U.S. government is too supportive of [Israel/Palestine], not supportive enough of [Israel/Palestine], or is the U.S. support of [Israel/Palestine] about right? Condition: Palestine

		Income (2 l	evels)		Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Too supportive	16	13	20	10	11	22	16		
Not supportive enough	32	30	34	24	31	29	38		
About right	12	12	12	13	15	12	9		
Don't know	38	43	34	50	41	36	35		
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	3	1	1	1		
Unweighted N	1003	526	477	58	176	336	433		

Support for U.S. calling for permanent ceasefire

Response		Income (2 l	evels)		Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Strongly support	36	30	41	33	24	38	44		
Somewhat support	17	16	18	21	13	17	19		
Somewhat oppose	7	8	6	10	8	6	6		
Strongly oppose	7	7	7	2	10	7	6		
Don't know	32	38	27	33	42	31	25		
Skipped/Refused	1	1	1	0	2	1	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Perceived effect of war in Gaza on vote choice

Thinking about how the issue of the	war in Gaz	a might affect	your vot	e for major offic	es, would you?			
		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Only vote for a candidate who shares your views on the war in Gaza	11	12	11	10	16	11	8	
Consider a candidate's position on the war in Gaza as just one of many important factors	48	48	49	46	37	51	55	
Not see the war in Gaza as a major issue	36	35	37	40	39	33	34	
Skipped/Refused	5	6	3	3	8	5	3	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Perferred outcome of Israeli-Palestinian conflict

What do you think would be the best	possible	outcome of the	e conflict	between Israel	and the Palestiniar	ıs?		
		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
The land is split into two countries, one country with an Israeli government and one country with a Palestinian governme	49	42	56	42	36	51	59	
All of the land is one country, governed jointly by Israelis and Palestinians together	24	27	22	29	29	27	18	
All of the land is one country, with an Israeli government	11	12	10	6	15	9	10	
All of the land is one country, with a Palestinian government	8	10	6	12	10	6	7	
Skipped/Refused	8	10	6	11	11	7	6	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Support for student protestors

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Strongly support	16	15	18	19	13	16	19		
Somewhat support	14	14	14	19	11	13	15		
Neither support nor oppose	34	39	29	37	43	33	27		
Somewhat oppose	11	10	12	7	9	13	13		
Strongly oppose	22	19	25	14	22	23	24		
Skipped/Refused	2	3	1	3	2	1	2		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Support for use of police to clear student encampments

Some university presidents have used the police to clear student encampments and/or arrest student protestors. Do you agree or disagree that this is appropriate?

		Income (2 l	.evels)			Education	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
Strongly agree	24	20	28	20	14	25	31
Somewhat agree	20	18	22	18	13	22	24
Neither agree nor disagree	33	40	25	42	43	30	24
Somewhat disagree	10	10	11	8	11	10	10
Strongly disagree	11	10	13	7	14	11	11
Skipped/Refused	3	3	2	5	5	2	0
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Perception of student protestors as spoiled and elite

Some say student protestors are spoiled and elite young people disrupting the educational experiences of other students. Do you agree or disagree with this statement?

		Income (2 l	evels)			Education	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
Strongly agree	13	10	16	10	13	13	13
Somewhat agree	18	17	20	11	19	20	18
Neither agree nor disagree	34	40	28	41	43	31	28
Somewhat disagree	15	14	16	14	12	17	16
Strongly disagree	18	17	19	22	11	18	22
Skipped/Refused	2	2	1	3	2	1	2
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Issues: Immigration

Perception of situation at U.S.-Mexico border

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
A major crisis for the U.S.	28	27	29	27	30	29	26		
A major problem for the U.S., but not a crisis	35	33	38	36	34	36	37		
A minor problem for the U.S.	24	24	23	26	23	23	25		
Not a problem for the U.S.	11	13	9	10	10	11	11		
Skipped/Refused	2	3	1	1	4	1	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Approval of Biden's handling of situation at U.S.-Mexico border

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Strongly approve	3	3	2	4	5	2	2		
Somewhat approve	10	9	11	6	6	11	13		
Neither approve nor disapprove	41	44	38	50	45	38	38		
Somewhat disapprove	19	18	20	17	17	21	19		
Strongly disapprove	26	24	29	22	25	28	27		
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	0	2	1	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Perceived effect of immigration on vote choice

Thinking about how the immigration	issue migl	nt affect your v	ote for r	najor offices, wo	ould you?				
		Income (2 l	.evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Only vote for a candidate who shares your views on immigration	19	21	18	16	19	23	18		
Consider a candidate's position on immigration as just one of many important factors	54	48	60	47	50	53	60		
Not see immigration as a major issue	23	25	21	34	25	23	19		
Skipped/Refused	3	5	1	3	6	2	3		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Issues: Inflation

Impact of inflation on self or family

Response		Income (2 l	evels)		Education					
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above			
Strongly agree	57	58	56	45	47	67	60			
Somewhat agree	30	26	34	37	31	22	33			
Somewhat disagree	9	10	8	11	16	8	5			
Strongly disagree	2	3	1	4	3	2	1			
Skipped/Refused	2	2	1	3	3	1	1			
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900			

Expectation of change in inflation over next six months

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Go up a lot	30	34	26	34	34	35	21		
Go up a little	38	35	42	33	29	37	48		
Remain the same	23	23	23	28	27	20	21		
Go down a little	6	5	7	3	6	4	8		
Go down a lot	2	2	2	2	2	3	0		
Skipped/Refused	1	2	0	1	2	1	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Issues: Abortion and reproductive justice

Support for overturning of Roe

In June 2020, the Supreme Court overturned Roe vs. Wade, which guaranteed a woman's right to an abortion. Do you agree with the Supreme Court's decision?

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Yes, strongly agree	15	15	15	8	17	16	14		
Yes, somewhat agree	15	16	14	24	17	14	13		
No, somewhat disagree	17	21	13	20	25	16	11		
No, strongly disagree	50	45	56	46	38	52	61		
Skipped/Refused	2	3	1	2	3	2	1		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

View on abortion rights

There has been a lot of discussion ab	out abort	ion recently. W	/hich one	of the opinion	s on this page come	es closest to you	r view?
		Income (2 l	evels)		Educat	ion	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
By law, abortion should never be permitted	9	9	8	8	11	9	7
The law should permit abortion only in case of rape, incest, or when the woman's life is in danger	19	23	15	24	28	19	11
The law should permit abortion for reasons other than rape, incest, or danger to the woman's life, but only after the ne	20	20	19	18	22	20	18
By law, a woman should always be able to obtain an abortion as a matter of personal choice	48	43	54	48	35	47	60
Other, please specify:	3	2	3	0	2	3	3
Skipped/Refused	2	2	1	2	3	2	1
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900

Perceived effect of abortion on vote choice

		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Only vote for a candidate who shares your views on abortion	34	30	39	30	28	31	44		
Consider a candidate's position on abortion as just one of many important factors	47	46	48	46	46	53	44		
Not see abortion as a major issue	16	19	12	20	22	15	11		
Skipped/Refused	3	4	1	5	4	2	2		
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900		

Support for state control of abortion policy

.[Donald Trump/Some politicians] recently endorsed the idea that abortion policies should be left up to the states. Do you agree that each state government should decide its own policy on abortion? Condition: Donald Trump

		Income (2 l	evels)		Ec	ducation	
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above
Strongly agree	13	15	11	14	15	12	11
Somewhat agree	30	34	25	38	40	27	21
Somewhat disagree	21	20	23	25	20	23	20
Strongly disagree	33	27	39	13	22	36	46
Skipped/Refused	3	3	2	10	3	2	1
Unweighted N	1050	551	499	69	179	353	449

.[Donald Trump/Some politicians] recently endorsed the idea that abortion policies should be left up to the states. Do you agree that each state government should decide its own policy on abortion? Condition: Some politicians

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education					
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above		
Strongly agree	12	13	11	12	13	13	10		
Somewhat agree	25	28	22	26	23	29	23		
Somewhat disagree	25	24	26	36	27	22	23		
Strongly disagree	35	31	39	25	30	32	44		
Skipped/Refused	3	4	2	1	6	4	1		
Unweighted N	1039	530	509	55	188	345	451		

Belief on stage in pregnancy after which abortion should not be allowed

In general, at what point in the pregnancy do you think [your state government/the federal government] should or should not allow a pregnant person to obtain a legal abortion? Condition: state government

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Never	24	24	25	17	26	26	24	
6 weeks into the pregnancy	20	25	13	37	23	17	12	
15 weeks into the pregnancy	27	28	26	19	32	26	26	
24 weeks into the pregnancy	10	8	13	11	6	11	13	
More than 24 weeks into the pregnancy	15	11	20	13	8	16	22	
Skipped/Refused	3	4	3	4	4	4	2	
Unweighted N	1045	539	506	71	197	338	439	

In general, at what point in the pregnancy do you think [your state government/the federal government] should or should not allow a pregnant person to obtain a legal abortion? Condition: federal government

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Never	22	24	20	19	27	23	17	
6 weeks into the pregnancy	17	20	14	29	22	15	13	
15 weeks into the pregnancy	24	26	22	20	19	27	25	
24 weeks into the pregnancy	14	13	15	15	10	11	19	
More than 24 weeks into the pregnancy	18	12	25	15	12	19	24	
Skipped/Refused	5	6	4	1	9	4	3	
Unweighted N	1044	542	502	53	170	360	461	

Issues: Student loan debt

Approval of Biden's efforts to cancel student loan debt

Do you approve or disapprove of President Biden's efforts to cancel student loan debt?										
		Income (2 levels)		Education						
Response	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above			
Strongly approve	28	28	28	24	24	31	30			
Somewhat approve	22	21	22	23	17	24	23			
Somewhat disapprove	15	14	16	20	18	13	13			
Strongly disapprove	18	15	21	10	15	17	23			
I have not heard much about these efforts	16	19	12	20	23	15	10			
Skipped/Refused	1	2	1	3	3	1	0			
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900			

Support for position that canceling student debt is unfair

Some politicians oppose the canceling of student loan debt, saying that it gives privileges to people who went to college and makes those who did not pay for this policy. Do you agree or disagree with this position?

Response		Income (2 l	evels)	Education				
	Overall	Under \$60k	\$60k+	Less than HS	High school grad	Some college	BA or above	
Strongly agree	20	18	21	11	21	21	19	
Somewhat agree	29	28	30	39	33	27	25	
Somewhat disagree	24	26	21	24	24	23	24	
Strongly disagree	25	24	26	22	17	25	31	
Skipped/Refused	3	3	2	4	5	3	1	
Unweighted N	2089	1081	1008	124	367	698	900	

Methodology

The GenForward May 2024 survey is a project of Professor Cathy J. Cohen at the University of Chicago. Interviews were conducted with a representative sample from GenForwardSM, a nationally representative survey panel of adults recruited and administered by NORC at the University of Chicago.

A total of 2089 interviews were conducted during May 10 to 22, 2024 with adults ages 18+ representing the 50 states and the District of Columbia, including completed interviews with 552 African American adults, 424 Asian American/Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander adults, 542 Latinx adults, 571 white adults, and o adults with other racial and ethnic backgrounds. The survey was offered in English and Spanish and via telephone and web modes.

The GenForward survey was built from NORC's AmeriSpeak® Panel and from the Black Youth Project (BYP) panel of young adults recruited by NORC. Funded and operated by NORC at the University of Chicago, AmeriSpeak® is a probability-based panel designed to be representative of the US household population. Randomly selected US households are sampled with a known, non-zero probability of selection from the NORC National Frame and address-based sample, and then contacted by US mail, telephone interviewers, overnight express mailers, and field interviewers (face to face). The BYP sample is from a probability-based household panel that uses an address-based sample from a registered voter database of the entire US. Households were selected using stratified random sampling to support over-sampling of households with African American, Latinx American, and Asian American/Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander young adults. NORC contacted sampled households by U.S. mail and by telephone, inviting them to register and participate in public opinion surveys twice a month.

Of the 2089 total interviews in the GenForward May 2024 survey, 98.2 percent were completed by web and 1.8 percent by telephone. The survey completion rate is 14.5 percent. The weighted AAPOR RR3 panel recruitment rate is 21.6 percent and the weighted household panel retention rate is 78.8 percent, for a weighted AAPOR RR3 cumulative response rate of 2.5 percent. The overall margin of error is ±3.24 percentage points at the 95 percent confidence level, including the design effect. Among subgroups, the margin of error at the 95 percent confidence level is ±5.79 percentage points for African Americans, ±6.62 percentage points for Asian Americans/Native Hawaiians/Pacific Islanders, ±6.85 percentage points for Latinx Americans, and ±4.94 percentage points for white Americans.

To encourage cooperation, respondents were offered incentives for completing the survey that ranged from the cash-equivalent of \$3 to \$15.

The interviews from the two probability-based sample sources were combined for statistical weighting and analysis. The combined panel samples provide sample coverage of approximately 97 percent of the U.S. household population. The statistical weights incorporate the appropriate probability of selection for the BYP and AmeriSpeak samples, nonresponse adjustments, and also, raking ratio adjustments to population benchmarks. A poststratification process is used to adjust for any survey nonresponse as well as any non-coverage or under- and over-sampling resulting from the study-specific sample design. The poststratification process was done separately for each racial/ethnic group and involved the following variables: age, gender, education, Census Region, and partisanship. The weighted data were used for all analyses unless otherwise noted.